
1. CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
3.a February 25th, 2020 Minutes    Suggested Action: Draft minutes provided for commission

approval.

4. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
 

5. NEW BUSINESS  
5.a Columbia Basin Development, Vandelay Meadows Subdivision (SUB-1-20)   Suggested

Action: The applicant, Columbia Basin Development, request approval of a tentative plat
for a residential subdivision to divide an existing parcel into 26-lots for residential
development and 1 lot for future commercial development. The applicant intends to develop
the residential lots with single-family dwellings. There is no proposal for the commercial lot
at this time. The property is identified as Tax Lot 100 and 200 on Assessors Map
5N2820CB.

5.b Nobles Appeal (AP-1-20) of Rivera Partition (MnP-3-19)   Suggested Action: An appeal of
the Planning Department’s decision approving the Proposed Development: To partition the
property into three parcels for residential use as requested in partition application MnP-3-
19.  The property upon which the partition is located is identified as Tax lot 1300 on
Assessors map 5N2821. The appeal was filed by Clyde Nobles, Betty Nobles, James Nobles,
and Sandra Nobles. Maria and Pedro Rivera are the applicants whose partition decision is
under appeal.

6. DISCUSSION ITEMS
 
6.a Community Development Director Report   Suggested Action: None - Discussion of

upcoming projects and applications

7. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS
 

8. ADJOURNMENT
 

UMATILLA PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
AGENDA

COUNCIL CHAMBERS
APRIL 28, 2020

7:00 PM
 

 

  

  

 

  

  

 

 

  

 

  

  

 
This institution is an equal opportunity provider. Discrimination is prohibited by Federal law. Special
accommodations to attend or participate in a city meeting or other function can be provided by 1

https://d2kbkoa27fdvtw.cloudfront.net/umatilla-city/e5e8f3fa64e6329cad9c0bc7052d21900.pdf
https://d2kbkoa27fdvtw.cloudfront.net/umatilla-city/386509a00700c4c9feaa6131dae40a760.pdf
https://d2kbkoa27fdvtw.cloudfront.net/umatilla-city/c81829551d82898173d26cd46b7670200.pdf
https://d2kbkoa27fdvtw.cloudfront.net/umatilla-city/04f7eb16b91b5f60c5d1e0fdcbb117f90.pdf


contacting City Hall at (541) 922-3226 or use the TTY Relay Service at 1-800-735-2900 for
appropriate assistance.

2



Page 1 of 3

CITY OF UMATILLA
PLANNING COMMISSION

February 25, 2020
**DRAFT MINUTES**
COUNCIL CHAMBERS

I. CALL TO ORDER: Meeting called to order at 6:30 p.m. 

II. ROLL CALL: 
A. Present: Commissioners; Boyd Sharp, Keith Morgan, Kelly Nobles, Jodi Hinsley, 

Bruce McLane, and Hilda Martinez 
B. Absent: Heidi Sipe
C. Late arrival: 
D. Staff present: Interim Community Development Director, Brandon Seitz and 

Associate Planner, Jacob Foutz.
III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Minutes January 28, 2020. Motion to approve with 
conditions by Commissioner Hinsley, seconded by Commissioner Nobles. Motion carried
5-0.

V. UNFINISHED BUSINESS: None

VI. NEW BUSINESS: 
A. US Cellular, Conditional Use (CU-1-20), Site Plan (SP-1-20), and Variance 

Request (V-1-20)
Suggested Action: The applicant, US Cellular, is requesting approval of a conditional
use, site plan approval, and two variances to develop a 2500 square foot 
telecommunications utility equipment facility. The site will consist of a 100 ft. tall 
monopole tower structure that will support wireless antenna equipment. The use is 
considered a community service use and is allowed in any zoning district. The property 
is identified as Tax Lot 606 on Assessors Map 5N2815BD.

Commissioner Nobles stated the property is on his deceased uncle’s estate. No conflict 
of interest.

Associate Planner Foutz, summarized the staff report and recommended approval with 
conditions found on report. 

Director Seitz stated that staff’s recommendation is to approve the conditional use, site 
plan review and a partial approval and denial of the variance. 

Chair Sharp asked why building standards did not apply to this structure. 

Director Seitz stated that because there is not occupancy attached the building standards 
do not apply. 

Commissioner Hinsley asked if notice was sent to property owners in the area. 3



Page 2 of 3

Associate Planner Foutz stated that notice was sent to all property owners within 100’

Chair Sharp called for the applicant’s testimony.

The applicant explained what US Cellular is planning to install and asked to grant them 
the landscaping variance. 

Chair Sharp called for testimony in favor of the application, testimony opposing the 
application, and testimony with no preference. None. 

Chair Sharp called for a motion to close hearing. Motion to close hearing made by 
Commissioner McLane, motion seconded by Commissioner Nobles. Motion carried 5-
0.

Chair Sharp called for a motion to approve CU-1-20 and SP-1-20. Motion to approve 
made by Commissioner McLane. Motion seconded by Commissioner Hinsley. Motion 
carried.

Commissioners Hinsley and Nobles stated that the increase of the fence height was 
appropriate for security reasons. 

Chair Sharp called for a motion to approve the variance to the fence height. Motion to 
approve made by Commissioner Nobles. Motion seconded by Commissioner Martinez. 
Motion carried 5-0.

Director Seitz clarified that staff recommends landscaping to be 10 percent total with a 
3-foot frontage along HWY 730. 

Commissioner Nobles asked if there was a way for the developer to pay what it would 
cost to landscape and to use the money to landscape somewhere else in the city. 

Director Seitz stated that it would be possible but would require a continuance. 

Chair sharp stated he felt paying for somewhere else would circumvent the purpose of 
the requirement.

Commissioner Morgan stated that 100 feet of beautification in that area would look out 
of place. 

Chair Sharp called for a motion to approve. Motion to approve the variance for the 
landscaping with the 3-foot-wide strip along HWY 730 and 5 percent of the remainder 
of the site made by Commissioner Nobles. Motion seconded by Commissioner Hinsley. 
Motion carried 5-0.

VII. DISCUSSION ITEMS:
Community Development Quarterly Report Suggested Action: No Action – Discussion
Only.
Director Seitz presented the Community Development Quarterly Report. 4



Page 3 of 3

VIII. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS:

IX.       ADJOURNMENT: Adjourned at 7:42pm.

5



      CITY OF UMATILLA PLANNING COMMISSION
REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION

FOR
TENTATIVE SUBDIVISION PLAT FOR SUB-1-20

DATE OF HEARING : April 28, 2020

REPORT PREPARED BY: Jacob Foutz, Associate Planner

I. GENERAL INFORMATION

Applicant: Columbia Basin Development, P.O box 5160, Pasco, WA 99302.

Property Owners: Columbia Basin Development, P.O box 5160, Pasco, WA 99302.

Land Use Review: Tentative plat review for a 26-lot subdivision.

Property Description: Township 5N, Range 28, Section 20CB, Tax Lots 00100, 00200.

Location: The property is generally located west of the Powerline Road and 
north of Dark Canyon Ave intersection.

Existing Development: The subject property is currently undeveloped.

Proposed Development: To subdivide the property into 26-lots for residential development
and 1 lot for commercial development.

Zone Medium-Density Residential (R2)

Adjacent Land Use(s):
Adjacent Property Zoning Use

North R1 Single-family dwellings
South R2 The bluffs Subdivision 
East R1 Undeveloped land
West EFU(County) Undeveloped land and irrigated farm land

II. NATURE OF REQUEST

The applicant, Columbia Basin Development, request approval of a tentative plat for a residential 
subdivision to divide an existing parcel into 26-lots for residential development and 1 lot for future 
commercial development. The applicant intends to develop the residential lots with single-family 
dwellings. There is no proposal for the commercial lot at this time. The proposal must comply with 
the applicable standards for the Medium-Density Residential zoning district (R2) and the Land 
Division Ordinance (LDO). 

6



Columbia Basin Development, Vandelay Meadows Subdivision (SUB-1-
20) Page 2 of 17

III. ANALYSIS
The criteria applicable to this request are shown in underlined text and the responses are shown in 
standard text. All of the following criteria must be satisfied in order for this request to be approved.

CITY OF UMATILLA ZONING ORDINANCE:

SECTION 10-3A-4: DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS:

Findings: No development is proposed at this time and the minimum yard setbacks are not 
applicable to this request. The minimum lot area, width and depth are applicable to all of the 
proposed lots. All of the proposed lots meet or exceed the minimum lot standards listed above as 
shown on the applicant’s submitted tentative plat.

Conclusion: All of the proposed lots exceed the minimum lot standards.

CITY OF UMATILLA LAND DIVISION ORDINANCE

SECTION 11-2-6: LAND DIVISION APPROVAL CRITERIA:
No plat for a subdivision or partition may be considered for approval until the city has approved a 
tentative plan. Approval of the tentative plan shall be binding upon the city and the applicant for 
the purposes of preparing the subdivision or partition plat. In each case, the applicant bears the 
burden of proof to demonstrate that the proposal satisfies applicable criteria and standards.

A. Approval Criteria: Land division tentative plans shall only be approved if found to comply 
with the following criteria:

1. The proposal shall comply with the city's comprehensive plan.
Findings: The City of Umatilla’s Zoning Ordinance (CUZO) and Land Division 
Ordinance (LDO) implement the comprehensive plan goals and policies. If a request is 
found to meet or be capable of meeting the applicable standards and criteria in the CUZO
and LDO the request is considered to be consistent with the comprehensive plan.

7



Columbia Basin Development, Vandelay Meadows Subdivision (SUB-1-
20) Page 3 of 17

Conclusion: This request is found to meet or be capable of meeting all of the applicable 
standards and criterion in the CUZO and LDO as addressed in this report.

2. The proposal shall comply with the I-82/U.S. 730 interchange area management plan 
(IAMP) and the access management plan in the IAMP (section 7) as applicable.
Findings: The Interchange Area Management Plan (IAMP) extends along U.S. Highway 
730 from its intersection with U.S. Highway 395 west to Eisele Drive just west of the U.S. 
Post Office within City Limits. The property is not within the IAMP area.

Conclusion: The property is not located within the I-82/U.S. 730 IAMP. This criterion is 
not applicable.

3. The proposal shall comply with the city's zoning requirements.
Findings: The property is zoned R2 and NC, the applicable City zoning requirements are
addressed above. This request complies with all of the dimensional standards as addressed 
in this report. 

Conclusion: The request is for approval of a subdivision that would result in 26-lots. All 
of the proposed lots will meet the minimum dimensional standards as addressed in this 
report.

4. The proposal shall comply with the city's public works standards.
Findings: The City’s public works standards are engineering design standards for 
construction of streets, sidewalks, curbs, water and sewer lines, other utilities, and safety 
standards for installation of such improvements. The applicant did not submit engineered 
construction plans for these facilities. Section 11-5-4 of the LDO provides the 
applicant/developer with the option of submitting engineered construction plans after 
tentative plat approval has been obtained. Engineered plans for all public facilities serving 
the proposed development will be reviewed by the public works director for compliance 
with the City’s public work standards. The applicant is required to install these facilities in 
compliance with the approved plans and to submit a final set of “as-built” plans to the City 
upon completion of the improvements.

Conclusion: This requirement is best satisfied as a condition of approval that the applicant 
obtain approval of engineered construction plans for all public works and utility facilities 
prior to starting construction and to submit final “as-build” drawing after construction is 
completed. 

5. The proposal shall comply with applicable state and federal regulations, including, but not 
limited to, Oregon Revised Statutes 92, 197, 227, and wetland regulations.
Findings: The CUZO and LDO implement the applicable provision of ORS 92, 197, 227. 
The subject property does not contain wetlands as shown on the National Wetlands 
Inventory (NWI) or figure 5-1.2 in the City’s Comprehensive Plan. Except as implemented 
through the City’s ordinance, applicable state and federal regulations will be required to be 
met as a condition of approval. 

8



Columbia Basin Development, Vandelay Meadows Subdivision (SUB-1-
20) Page 4 of 17

Conclusion: This request is found to meet or be capable of meeting all of the standards 
and criteria as addressed in this report, the proposal will comply with applicable state and 
federal regulations, as implemented through the City’s ordinances. The applicant will be 
required as a condition of approval to comply with all other state and federal requirements. 

6. The proposal shall conserve inventoried natural resource areas and floodplains, including, 
but not limited to, mapped rivers, creeks, sloughs, and wetlands.
Findings: There are no known wetlands, as identified on the NWI, or flood zones on the 
subject property. The City of Umatilla’s Comprehensive Plan does not identify any 
significant natural resources on the property and there are no known rivers, creeks or 
sloughs on the property.

Conclusion: There are no inventoried natural resource areas, waterways, water bodies or 
floodplain areas to conserve on the property. This criterion is not applicable. 

7. The proposal shall minimize disruption of natural features of the site, including steep slopes 
or other features, while providing for safe and efficient vehicle, pedestrian, and bicycle 
access.
Findings: The subject property is not identified as having slope in Figure 7.1-2 of the City 
of Umatilla’s Comprehensive Plan. There are no identified natural features on the subject 
property. The proposed streets, sidewalks and other public facilities will be reviewed for 
compliance with the City’s public works standards which are intended to provide for and 
protect the public health, safety and welfare.

Conclusion: There are no inventoried or known natural features on the site. Therefore, no 
disruption of natural feature will occur as a result of the proposed subdivision. Vehicle and 
pedestrian access will be provided as part of the proposed subdivision; however, these will 
be reviewed against other applicable standards as addressed in this report. If found to meet 
or be capable of meeting the standards as addressed in this report the proposed subdivision 
will comply with this standard.

8. The proposal shall provide adjacent lands with access to public facilities and streets to 
allow its full development as allowed by the City's codes and requirements.
Findings: A portion of the subject property is part of what was known as “The Bluffs”  
development plan that was approved in August of 2003. However, only the first phase of 
the plan was developed and the approval has expired. The applicant’s layout and design 
connect to the existing layout and design of “The Bluffs” phase 1. 

Conclusion: The applicants submitted plan includes a tentative street layout that complies 
with City standards and would provide adjacent lands with access to public facilities and 
streets to allow its full development.

9. The proposal shall be designed with streets that continue or connect to existing and 
planned land division plats on adjoining properties. All proposed streets shall comply 
with standards of this Title and the Public Works Standards. 
Findings: The proposed subdivision includes a street layout that connects to the adjoining 
existing property to the south. The street layout clearly connects Vandelay Meadows to the 

9



Columbia Basin Development, Vandelay Meadows Subdivision (SUB-1-
20) Page 5 of 17

existing “The Bluffs” subdivision via Blue Jay Street. All proposed streets will be reviewed 
through this request and through the public works director’s review of engineered 
construction plans to ensure the streets comply with the City’s public works standards. 

Conclusion: As addressed above, the proposed subdivision includes a street layout for the 
property that extends and connects to adjoining lands and existing land division plats. The 
proposed streets will be reviewed for compliance with the City’s street standards as 
contained in the LDO and reviewed by the public works director for compliance with the 
City’s public work standards.

SECTION 11-4-2: STREETS:
The location, width, and grade of streets shall be considered in their relation to existing and 
planned streets, to topographical conditions, to public utilities, services, convenience, and safety, 
and to the proposed use of the land to be served by the streets.

A. Street Arrangement: The arrangement of streets in and serving land divisions shall:
1. Maximize public safety, access, and minimize out of direction travel by utilizing a grid 

system or comparable design.
2. Avoid cul-de-sacs, except where there is no other practical alternative to serve a portion

of the land area to be divided, due to topographical conditions, existing development, or 
similar circumstances.

3. Provide for the continuation of existing streets in surrounding areas.
4. Conform to any future street plan, neighborhood plan, or other street plan adopted by the 

City.
Findings: The proposed phase 1 of the subdivision continues the existing grid system 
found in “The Bluffs”. The design will allow for future buildout of the property to 
continue the grid system. The proposed subdivision has two temporary cul-de-sacs at the 
end of the two streets. These are necessary to allow the future extension of the existing 
street system to the next phase of development. This will provide for the continuation of 
existing streets into the surrounding areas. 

Conclusion: The proposed subdivision is a grid type layout, and provides a layout and 
design that may be extended to serve future phases. Although the proposed subdivision 
includes two temporary cul-de-sacs, the cul-de-sacs will serve as an area to turn around
for emergency services until future development. The proposed subdivision continues 
existing streets and will create a new intersection on Powerline Road. There are no street 
or neighborhood plans adopted by the city on adjacent properties. 

B. Street Layout And Design:
1. All streets, alleys, bicycle, and pedestrian pathways shall connect to other streets within 

the land division and to existing and planned streets outside the land division. Streets 
shall terminate at other streets or at parks, schools, or other public uses within a 
neighborhood.
Findings: As addressed in this report the proposed streets will connect with an existing 
street, Blue Jay Street, and a new intersection on Powerline Road. The proposed 
subdivision includes two connection points for the proposed streets to be extended to 
serve the remainder of the property.

10



Columbia Basin Development, Vandelay Meadows Subdivision (SUB-1-
20) Page 6 of 17

Conclusion: The proposed subdivision includes a tentative layout for the remained of the 
property that would allow all of the proposed streets to connect to other streets or would 
allow for the proposed streets to be extended onto lands outside the proposed subdivision.

2. Local streets shall align and connect with other streets when crossing streets with higher 
level classifications.
Findings: The proposed subdivision will create a new intersection on Powerline Road. 
The proposed street will not cross Powerline Road. 

Conclusion: The proposed streets will not cross a street with a higher-level classification. 

3. Cul-de-sacs and flag lots shall only be permitted when the following conditions are 
demonstrated:
a. Existing conditions, such as topographic features, water features, an irrigation canal, a 

railroad, a freeway, or other condition, that cannot be bridged or crossed prevents the 
extension of a street.

b. The existing development pattern on adjacent properties prevents a street connection.
c. An accessway is provided consistent with the standards for accessways. 
d. A minor street is not a suitable alternative to multiple flag lots (more than 2 adjacent 

flags) due to size of the site, topographic features, or other physical constraint.
Findings: Two temporary cul-de-sacs are proposed as part of this application. The 
cul-de-sacs are located at the end of the two proposed streets. As the remainder of the 
property is built out the cul-de-sacs with be removed, and proposed streets will be 
extended to serve the remainder of the property. No flag lots are proposed as part of 
this request.

Conclusion: The proposed subdivision includes two temporary cul-de-sacs but will 
be removed once the future developments start to buildout. Temporary cul-de-sacs are 
not subject to this standard. No flag lots are proposed.

4. Cul-de-sacs shall not exceed four hundred feet (400') in length.
Findings: The proposed temporary cul-de-sac is approximately 100 feet in length. 

Conclusion: The proposed temporary cul-de-sac does not exceed 400 feet in length.

5. Where a land division includes or is adjacent to land that can be divided and developed in 
the future, streets, bicycle paths, and pedestrian ways shall continue through the full 
length of the land division to provide connections for the adjacent land.
Findings: The proposed subdivision includes streets that continue through the full length 
of the proposed subdivision. The proposed streets and pedestrian ways continue through 
the full length of the land division to provide connections to the adjacent land. 

Conclusion: The proposed subdivision is adjacent to lands that can be divided and 
developed, including the remained of the subject property. The proposed subdivision 

11



Columbia Basin Development, Vandelay Meadows Subdivision (SUB-1-
20) Page 7 of 17

includes a proposed layout that continue the streets and pedestrian ways throughout the 
property, and connects to adjacent lands that may be divided and developed in the future.

6. Where proposed lots or parcels in a proposed land division exceed double the minimum 
lot size and can be redivided, the location of lot and parcel lines and other layout details 
shall be such that future land divisions may readily occur without interfering with the 
orderly extension of adjacent streets, bicycle paths, or pedestrianways. Any building 
restrictions within future transportation locations, such as future street rights of way or 
future street setbacks, shall be made a matter of record for the purpose of future land 
divisions.
Findings: The proposed subdivision would create 26 new residential lots and 1 
commercial lot on the subject property and the remained of the property is large enough 
to be redivided. The proposed street layout would allow for subsequent land division 
applications to develop the remainder of the property. 

Conclusion: The remainder of the subject property would be large enough to be divided 
in the future. The location and parcel lines are such that future land division may readily 
occur without interference. 

7. Where there is a reasonable relationship between the impacts of the proposed 
development and the public need for accessways, such as direct connections to public 
schools or parks, the land divider shall be required to publicly dedicate accessways to:
a. Connect to cul-de-sacs;
b. Pass through oddly shaped or unusually long blocks; or
c. Provide for networks of public pedestrian and bicycle paths; or
d. Provide access to other transportation routes, businesses, residential, or public uses.
Findings: The proposed subdivision provides for the extension of existing streets and 
provides access onto Powerline Road, the primary transportation route from the south hill 
area to downtown. There are no existing parks, schools or other public facilities in the 
area that would require dedication of additional public access.

Conclusion: The proposed subdivision connects to existing streets and provides access 
onto Powerline Road, a minor arterial and primary north south connector in the south hill 
area. There are no public schools, parks or other public facilities in the area that would 
require dedication of additional public access.

8. New construction or reconstruction of collector and arterial streets shall include bicycle 
facilities and pedestrian sidewalks as required by applicable city plans.

9. Sidewalks shall be installed along the street frontage of arterial and collector streets and 
for any street within a multi-family, commercial, or industrial land division by the land 
divider. Sidewalks on local streets within a subdivision for single-family residential lots 
shall be provided with the construction of a structure on the lot and shall be completed 
prior to occupancy of the structure.
Findings: The proposed application includes the creation of new local streets within a 
single-family residential subdivision. Therefore, installation of sidewalks along the 
property frontage will be required at time of issuance of a building permit. Powerline 
Road is considered a minor arterial. Street improvements to Powerline Road, as 

12



Columbia Basin Development, Vandelay Meadows Subdivision (SUB-1-
20) Page 8 of 17

addressed in this report, will include additional pavement width and installation of a new 
landscaped area, fence, curb, gutter and sidewalk.

Conclusion: Although engineered construction plans were not submitted as part of this 
application street improvements along Powerline Road, a minor arterial, will require 
installation of a sidewalk. The proposed internal roads are considered local streets and 
sidewalks will be required as a condition of approval on a building permit to be installed 
prior to issuance of a certificate of occupancy. 

10. An easement may be required to provide for all or part of sidewalks along one or both 
sides of a public right of way which lacks width to include sidewalks within the public 
right of way.
Findings: All of the proposed new streets will be required to dedicate right of way to a 
current city standard including sidewalks. Powerline Road is a sixty-foot (60’) right of 
way and has sufficient space to include sidewalks within the public right of way.

Conclusion: All of the proposed new streets will be required to meet a current city 
standard including sidewalks within the public right of way. Powerline Road has 
sufficient area to accommodate sidewalks within the public right of way.

11. When a sidewalk in good repair does not exist, all applicants for building permits for a 
new structure or remodeling of more than a minor nature of an existing structure shall, in 
conjunction with the issuance of a building permit, obtain a permit to construct a 
sidewalk for the full frontage of the site. No final inspection or certificate of occupancy 
shall be issued for the building permit until a sidewalk has been constructed in 
accordance with the permit requirements.
Findings: As addressed in this report new sidewalks along Powerline Road will be 
require to be installed as part of the street improvements. All of the proposed roads are 
considered local streets and installation of a sidewalk will be required as a condition of 
approval on a building permit.

Conclusion: Sidewalks will be required to be installed along Powerline Road prior to the 
City accepting the proposed street improvements. All of the proposed local streets will be 
required to install sidewalks as a condition of approval upon issuance of a building 
permit.

12. Off site pedestrian improvements may be required concurrent with a land division to 
ensure access between the land division and an existing developed facility such as a 
commercial center, school, park, or trail system. The approval authority must show a 
reasonable relationship between the impacts of the land division and the required 
improvement.
Findings: The proposed subdivision will be located adjacent to Powerline Road. 
Powerline Road is the primary north/south road that connects the south hill area to 
downtown. There are no public lands or facilities adjacent to the proposer’s subdivision 
to provide access to or that would warrant dedication of off-site pedestrian 
improvements.

13



Columbia Basin Development, Vandelay Meadows Subdivision (SUB-1-
20) Page 9 of 17

Conclusion: There are no public lands or facilities in the vicinity that would warrant 
dedication of off-site pedestrian improvements. 

13. Structures are not allowed in any dedicated sidewalk areas which will obstruct 
movements on the sidewalk. The minimum widths of sidewalks shall conform to ADA 
standards.
Findings: No structures are identified on the preliminary plat. A new structure within a 
public right of way would be subject to review and approval by the City. All new 
sidewalks will be required to meet ADA standards.

Conclusion: The tentative plat does not show a structure within an area dedicated for 
sidewalks or that would obstruct movement on a sidewalk. The applicant’s engineered 
construction plans will be reviewed to ensure new sidewalks meet City and ADA 
standards.

14. Sidewalks generally shall be parallel to adjacent streets in line and grade, except where 
existing features or topographical conditions warrant an alternative design.
Findings: As addressed in this report the applicant has not submitted construction plans 
with this application. However, the applicant has indicated that sidewalks will generally 
be parallel to the adjacent street as required by this standard. 

Conclusion: As addressed in this report engineered construction drawings have not been 
submitted as part of this review. The construction drawings will show the location of curb 
and sidewalks within the new subdivision. 

15. All sidewalks shall be adjacent to the curb as specified in the public works standards, 
unless impractical due to special circumstances of the site or adjacent street.
Findings: This provision seems to create some confusion and conflict with the City’s
adopted street standards in Section 12.2.510 of the City’s Transportation System Plan 
(TSP) as adopted in the City Comprehensive Plan, specifically figure 12.2-10 and Table 
12.2-10. The standards addressed in the TSP were intended to allow for greater flexibility
enabling the City to apply sound engineering judgment to determine the appropriate 
functional classification for new streets. However, the TSP designates an optional planter 
strip for most road classifications that would provide for detached sidewalks set back 
from the curb. All of the proposed new streets would be considered local residential 
streets and are not required to provide a planter strip and will have sidewalks adjacent to 
the curb. Powerline Road is considered a minor arterial street and includes the optional 
planter strip.

Conclusion: All of the proposed new streets are considered local residential streets and 
do not require a planter strip and will have sidewalks adjacent to the curb. A planter strip 
is identified as an optional improvement for Powerline Road. However, as addressed in 
the report engineered construction plans will be required to be submitted and approved by 
the public works director. It is anticipated that proposed improvements will include a 
planter strip/landscape area but have sidewalks adjacent to the curb to match the existing 
improvements along Powerline Road to the north. 

14



Columbia Basin Development, Vandelay Meadows Subdivision (SUB-1-
20) Page 10 of 17

16. Street trees are required along both sides of new public streets, at a minimum of thirty 
feet (30') on center, with at least one tree for each new lot or parcel. Street tree locations 
shall be shown on construction plans and shall generally be located at the edge of the 
right of way. Street trees shall be required with building permits for structures on 
approved lots and shall be installed prior to approval of occupancy.
Findings: Street trees are not identified on the preliminary plat and are typically not 
show on the construction plans. A criterion is best met through a condition of approval.

Conclusion: Installation of street trees are generally not shown on construction plans or 
the preliminary plat. The applicant is aware of this requirement and intends to comply. A 
condition of approval will be imposed requiring street trees to be installed in accordance 
with this standard prior to issuance of a certificate of occupancy.

C. Right Of Way And Roadway Widths: Generally, right of way and roadway widths for state 
highways and county roads shall be determined by these entities. Unless otherwise 
determined by the city administrator based on the recommendation of the city engineer and 
public works director, the widths of streets and roadways shall meet the following standards 
and, in addition, all street construction shall conform to the public works standards:
1. The city administrator may modify the width of a planter strip to accommodate drainage 

and public utilities.
2. Curbside sidewalks shall be required.
3. Bike lanes and shoulder bikeways along arterial and collector streets shall be five feet (5') 

wide and shall be provided for each direction of travel allowed on the street.
4. Sidewalk and bicycle path lighting shall be provided in conjunction with new road 

construction and new development.
5. Wheelchair ramps and other facilities shall be provided as required by the Americans 

with disabilities act (ADA).
6. Bikeways shall be designed and constructed consistent with the design standards in the 

Oregon bicycle plan, 1992, and ASSHTO's "Guide For The Development Of Bicycle 
Facilities, 1991".
Findings: As addressed in this report construction plans were not submitted as part of 
this request. Installation of improvements within the right of way will be reviewed by the 
public works director to ensure improvements meet City standards.

Conclusion: The required improvements within the right of way are typically shown on 
the construction plans not the preliminary plat. As addressed in this report the applicant 
will be required to submit engineered construction plans to the public works director 
prior to starting construction. All improvements will be required to meet City standards.

D. Reserve Strips: Public reserve strips or street plugs controlling access to streets may be 
approved where necessary for the protection of the public welfare or of substantial property 
rights.
Findings: The use of public reserve strips or street plugs is not proposed nor has the City 
identified the need for such access control measures.

Conclusion: No reserve strips or street plugs are proposed. This criterion is not applicable.

15



Columbia Basin Development, Vandelay Meadows Subdivision (SUB-1-
20) Page 11 of 17

E. Alignment: Streets other than minor streets shall be in alignment with existing streets by 
continuations of the centerlines. Staggered street alignment resulting in "T" intersections 
shall be avoided and in no case shall the distance between centerlines of off set streets be less 
than two hundred feet (200').
Findings: The proposed streets are in alignment with existing streets by the continuation of 
the centerlines. One “T” intersection is proposed and is necessary to avoid excessive entry 
points to Powerline Road.  

Conclusion: The proposed streets and future street layout is designed to connect to existing 
and proposed future streets. Due to configuration and proximity of the lot to Powerline Road
avoiding all “T” intersections is impractical. No “T” intersections that could be aligned to 
form continuations of existing streets are proposed and the distance between off set streets is 
not more than two hundred feet (200’).

F. Future Extension Of Streets: Streets shall be extended to the boundary of the land division. A 
temporary turnaround may be required for emergency vehicle access if a dead end street 
results.
Findings: All of the proposed streets extend to the boundary of the land division. The 
proposed plat have two temporary turnarounds shown.

Conclusion: Two dead end streets are shown on the preliminary plat. However, the dead end 
streets are part of a future street extension. In addition, both dead end streets do not serve as 
the primary access to any proposed lots. 

G. Intersection Angles: Streets shall be laid out to intersect at right angles as nearly as practical.
In no case shall the intersection angle be less than seventy five degrees (75°). The 
intersection of arterial or collector streets with other arterial or collector streets shall have at 
least one hundred feet (100') of tangent adjacent to the intersection. Other streets, except 
alleys, shall have at least sixty feet (60') of tangent adjacent to the intersection.
Findings: The layout of the proposed street are nearly at right angles. No new arterial or 
collector street are proposed.

Conclusion: The proposed street intersections are laid out at nearly right angles.

H. Existing Streets: When existing streets adjacent to or within a site have widths less than city 
standards, additional right of way shall be provided with the land division.
Findings: All of the proposed streets will be extensions of existing streets.  There is one 
existing street within the adjacent site to the south with widths that will require dedication of 
additional right of way. The applicant has submitted plans to extend the right of way from 
their property line into the new developments first intersection that meets City standards. 
This is addressed in the preliminary plat.

Conclusion: The existing street adjacent to the site have right of way widths not consistent 
with City standards. The applicant has submitted plans to extend the right of way from their 
property line into the new developments first intersection that meets City standards. 

16



Columbia Basin Development, Vandelay Meadows Subdivision (SUB-1-
20) Page 12 of 17

I. Partial Street Dedication And Improvements: Half streets shall be avoided wherever possible. 
A partial street dedication may be permitted when a land division abuts undeveloped 
property which is likely to dedicate the remainder of the street. At minimum, two-thirds (2/3) 
of the street dedication and improvement shall be required for any partial street to 
accommodate two (2) travel lanes, one parking lane, and sidewalk on one side. Reserve strips 
and street plugs may be required to preserve the objectives of the partial street.
Findings: No partial street dedications/improvements are proposed.

Conclusion: No partial street dedications or improvements are proposed. This criterion is not 
applicable.

J. Street Names: Except for extensions of existing streets, no street name shall be used which 
will duplicate or be confused with the name of existing streets. Street names and numbers 
shall conform to the established pattern in the city, applicable requirements, and shall be 
approved by the city.
Findings: There are three streets in the proposed development. Blue Jay Street is a 
continuation from “The Bluffs” subdivision. The other two streets are labeled as Street A and 
Street B on the tentative plan lot layout.

Conclusion: The two streets labeled as Street A and Street B will need to be renamed with 
names that meet the above criteria. Therefore, the applicant will need to submit two new 
street names to be approved by the City and shown on the final plat.

K. Grades And Curves: Centerline radii of curves shall not be less than three hundred feet (300') 
on arterial streets, two hundred feet (200') on collector streets, or one hundred feet (100') on 
local streets. Grades shall not exceed six percent (6%) on arterials, ten percent (10%) on 
collector streets, or twelve percent (12%) on any other street.
Findings: The submitted tentative plat show no centerline curve radius for the proposed 
streets. All of the proposed streets are considered local streets, and are straight. The grade of 
the streets is not shown on the tentative plan. The required construction plans will show 
grade of all of the proposed streets.

Conclusion: All of the proposed streets have a radius exceeding one hundred feet (100’), 
because they are straight. The required construction plans will be reviewed to ensure 
compliance with city standards including grade.

L. Streets Adjacent To Railroad Rights Of Way: Wherever the proposed land division includes 
or is adjacent to a railroad right of way, provisions may be required for a street 
approximately parallel to and on each side of such right of way at a distance suitable for the 
appropriate use of the land between the streets and the railroad. The distance shall be 
determined with due consideration at cross streets of the minimum distance required for 
approach grades to a future grade separation and to provide sufficient depth to allow 
vegetative or other screening to be placed along the railroad right of way.
Findings: The proposed land division does not include and is not adjacent to a railroad right-
of-way.

17



Columbia Basin Development, Vandelay Meadows Subdivision (SUB-1-
20) Page 13 of 17

Conclusion: There are no railroad rights-of-way included or adjacent to the proposed 
subdivision. This criterion is not applicable.

M. Marginal Access Streets: Where a land division abuts or contains an existing or proposed 
arterial street, the city may require marginal access streets, reverse frontage lots with 
additional depth, screen planting or other screening contained in a nonaccess reservation 
along the rear or side property line, or other treatment necessary for adequate protection of 
residential properties and to afford separation of through and local traffic. Alleys are 
acceptable as a means of providing access to lots or parcels fronting state highways or county 
roads.
Findings: The proposed subdivision abuts Powerline Road a minor arterial street. As 
addressed in this report the applicant intends to provide a sidewalk, landscaping/planner strip 
and permeant barrier along powerline road. The applicant intends to provide a design 
consistent with similar barriers located along Powerline Road to the north of the property.

Conclusion: Construction plans were not submitted as part of this application but the 
applicant intends to provide a barrier including sidewalks, landscaping and a fence along the 
street frontage of Powerline Road. Final design and approval will be included as part of the 
public works director review of the required engineered plans.

N. Alleys:
1. Alleys shall be provided in commercial and industrial districts, unless other permanent 

provisions for access to off street parking and loading facilities are approved by the city.
2. Alleys are encouraged to serve residential development that front along state highways or 

county roads to minimize congestion and traffic hazards.
3. The corners of alley intersections shall have a radius of not less than two feet (2').

Findings: The applicant’s request is for a subdivision in a residential zone and includes 
one lot in a commercial zoning district. There is no plan to develop the commercial 
property at this time. When that time comes this standard will apply. 

Conclusion: The subject property is zoned for residential use and includes a lot in a
commercial zoning district. This standard will need to be met when the commercial 
property is developed. 

SECTION 11-4-3: BLOCKS:
The length, width, and shape of blocks shall take into account the need for adequate lot size and 
street width. No block shall be more than eight hundred feet (800') in length between street 
corner lines, unless it is adjacent to an arterial street or unless justified by the location of 
adjoining streets. The recommended minimum length of blocks along an arterial street is one 
thousand six hundred feet (1,600'). Any block over eight hundred feet (800') in length may be 
required to provide pedestrian connections through the block and crosswalks dedicated and 
improved to city standards.
Findings: The proposed subdivision would in essentially create four new blocks. The proposed 
blocks are approximately 208 feet (south of street a), 393 feet (north of street a), 208 feet (south 
of street b), and 364 feet (east of blue jay street).

18



Columbia Basin Development, Vandelay Meadows Subdivision (SUB-1-
20) Page 14 of 17

Conclusion: As addressed in this report all of the proposed lots will be less than the maximum
block dimensions. All of the proposed blocks will be less than 800 feet in length.

SECTION 11-4-4: EASEMENTS:
A. Utility Lines: Utility lines shall generally be located within public rights of way unless other 

provisions are required to meet the specific needs of a particular utility provider. A ten foot 
(10') wide easement for public and private utilities shall be provided along property frontages 
(measured from the right of way line) and a six foot (6') wide easement for public and private 
utilities shall be provided along side and rear lot lines, except as otherwise approved by the 
city administrator.
Findings: The applicant is proposing to dedicate a ten foot (10’) public utility easement 
along all property frontages including side and rear lot lines.

Conclusion: The applicant is proposing to dedicate a ten foot (10’) public utility easement 
along all property frontages including side and rear lot lines. 

B. Watercourses: If a land division is crossed by or adjacent to a natural water body, an 
easement conforming to the riparian area shall be provided to protect the watercourse.
Findings: The proposed subdivision is not crossed or adjacent to a water body.

Conclusion: The proposed subdivision is not crossed or adjacent to a water body. This 
criterion is not applicable. 

11-4-5: LOTS:
Lot and parcel size, shape, and orientation shall be consistent with the applicable zoning district 
and for the type of use contemplated. No lot or parcel dimension shall include the adjacent public 
right of way.
A. Through lots with public streets on both front and rear or both sides shall be avoided except 

when essential to provide separation of residential development from adjacent arterial or 
collector streets. An easement at least five feet (5') in width shall be located adjacent to the 
right of way and there shall be no right of access to the major street. A permanent barrier
may be required along the right of way, within the easement.
Findings: Proposed lots one through seven (1 – 7) are through lots with access onto 
proposed extension of Blue Jay Street and Powerline Road. The applicant has included a ten 
foot (10’) public utility easement along all property frontages exceed the requirements of this 
standard. In addition, the applicant will install landscaping and permanent barrier along the 
street frontage of Powerline Road. To match the existing barrier to the north of the property 
to the extent practical. The final design/location of the permanent barrier will be required to 
be shown on the construction plans.

Conclusion: The applicant has already dedicated a ten-foot (10’) easement along the 
property frontage facing Powerline Road. The construction plans will be required to show the 
proposed permanent barrier including landscaping. 

B. Lot and parcel side lot lines shall be at right angles to fronting streets or radius to curved 
streets to the extent practical, in order to create lots and parcels with building sites which are 
nearly rectangular.

19



Columbia Basin Development, Vandelay Meadows Subdivision (SUB-1-
20) Page 15 of 17

Findings: All of the proposed lots as show on the submitted preliminary plat are nearly 
rectangular in shape and will provide building sites which are rectangular in shape.

Conclusion: All of the proposed lots will provide a rectangular building area.

C. Lots shall have a width to depth ratio not to exceed 2.5.
Findings: As shown on the submitted preliminary plat all of the proposed lots do not exceed 
a width to depth ratio of 2.5.

Conclusion: As shown on the submitted preliminary plat all of the proposed lots will have a 
width to depth ratio no exceeding 2.5.

D. All lots and parcels shall have a minimum street frontage on a public street of fifty feet (50'), 
except that lots or parcels fronting a cul-de-sac or curved street may have a minimum street 
frontage of forty feet (40'), so long as the minimum lot width required by the zoning district 
is provided at a distance equivalent to the required front yard setback.
Findings: As shown on the submitted preliminary plat all of the proposed lots will have a 
minimum street frontage on a public street of fifty feet (50’).

Conclusion: As shown on the submitted preliminary plat all of the proposed lots will exceed 
the minimum street frontage standards.

E. Flag lots shall not be acceptable for land divisions, but may be approved if the following 
circumstances apply:
1. For one or two (2) lot land divisions when it is not practical to create or extend a public 

street or partial public street due to the nature of surrounding development.
2. When topographic conditions or other physical constraints make it impractical or 

infeasible to create or extend a public street.
3. When the size and shape of the site limit the possible arrangement of new lots or parcels

and prevent the creation or extension of a public street.
4. When allowed, the flag portion of a new lot shall have a minimum width of fifteen feet 

(15') to accommodate a driveway a minimum of twelve feet (12') wide. Two (2) adjacent 
flag lots may reduce the street frontage and pole width to twelve feet (12') wide, if joint 
access easements are created and a driveway is provided with a minimum width of 
twenty feet (20').
Findings: No flag lots are proposed as part of this application.

Conclusion: No flag lots are proposed as part of this application. These criteria are not 
applicable.

IV. PUBLIC COMMENT, SUMMARY AND DECISION

This request by the applicant, Columbia Basin Development, for tentative subdivision plat 
approval for a 26-lot subdivision on property in the Medium-Density Residential (R-2) Zone and 
1 commercial lot in the Neighborhood Commercial (NC) Zone appears to meet, or be capable of 
meeting with appropriate conditions of approval, all of the applicable development standards of
the City of Umatilla Zoning Ordinance and the criteria and development standards in the City of 

20



Columbia Basin Development, Vandelay Meadows Subdivision (SUB-1-
20) Page 16 of 17

Umatilla Land Division Ordinance. Therefore, based on the information in Sections I and II of 
this report, and the above criteria and standards, findings of fact and conclusions contained in 
Section III, this request, SUB-1-20, for tentative subdivision plat approval to create a 26-lot 
subdivision in the Medium-Density Residential (R-2) Zone and 1 commercial lot in the 
Neighborhood Commercial (NC) Zone may be approved, subject to the conditions of approval 
contained in Section V of this report.

V. CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

1. The final plat must be approved and recorded within one year from the date of this 
approval.  The final subdivision plat must comply with the requirements of ORS chapter 
92, and the requirements under Section 11-3-1 and 11-3-2 of the City of Umatilla Land 
Division Ordinance which the City will use as a checklist.

2. The applicant/developer shall submit a preliminary copy of the preliminary plat to the 
County Surveyor and GIS Department for review prior to submitting the final plat to the 
City.

3. The applicant/developer shall submit engineered construction plans for streets, water, 
sewer, street lighting and all other improvements within the street rights-of-way to the 
City Public Works Director for review and approval. No construction shall begin until the 
construction plans have been approved.

4. Street trees shall be provided as required by the Land Division Ordinance and shall be 
required as a condition of approval on each building permit issued for a dwelling within 
the subdivision.

5. Street names approved by the City shall be shown on the final plat. No street name will 
be approved that is confusing, offensive or duplicates or sounds too similar to existing 
street names within the urban growth boundary.

6. If any historic, cultural or other archaeological artifacts, or human remains are discovered 
during construction the applicant shall immediately cease construction activity, secure the 
site, and notify appropriate agencies including but not limited to the City of Umatilla, and 
the Confederated Tribes of the Umatilla Indian Reservation (CTUIR) Cultural Resources 
Protection Program.

7. The applicant, or applicant’s construction contractor, must obtain all federal, state and 
local permits, prior to starting construction.

8. The applicant shall be responsible for ensuring that all areas disturbed within existing 
street rights-of-way by construction are returned to their pre-construction condition or 
better after construction or installation of required improvements.

21



Columbia Basin Development, Vandelay Meadows Subdivision (SUB-1-
20) Page 17 of 17

9. The applicant shall submit a copy of the final recorded plat of the subdivision and ‘as-
built’ drawings of all required improvements to the City of Umatilla.

10. No building permit for a dwelling will be issued until final plat approval of the 
subdivision has been obtained and recorded in the Umatilla County Records Office.

11. Failure to comply with the conditions of approval established herein may result in 
revocation of this approval.

VI. EXHIBITS

Exhibit A Notice Map

22



CITY OF UMATILLA PLANNING COMMISSION 

REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION 

FOR 

APPEAL AP-1-20 

 

DATE OF HEARING: April 28, 2020 

 

REPORT PREPARED BY: Brandon Seitz, Community Development Director 

                           

 

I.  GENERAL INFORMATION AND FACTS 

 
Appellants: James B. Nobles, Sandra K. Nobles, Betty L. Nobles and Clyde C. 

Nobles.  

 
Property Owners: Maria and Pedro Rivera, 7422 Cleon Ave, Sun Valley, CA 91352 
 

Land Use Review: Appeal of Administrative Decision for MnP-3-19 approving a 

request to partition property into three parcels for residential use. 

 

Property Description: Township 5N, Range 28, Section 21, Tax Lot 1300. 

 

Location: The property is located at 30083 Copper Ln, Hermiston, OR 97882. 

 

Existing Development: The property is developed with an existing manufactured home. 

 

Proposed Development: To partition the property into three parcel for residential use. 

 

Zone Agricultural Residential (R-1) 

 

Adjacent Land Use(s): 

 

Adjacent 

Property 

Zoning Use 

North Light Industrial Data center campus 

South  Agricultural Residential Single-family dwellings and farm land 

East Agricultural Residential  Single-family dwellings and farm land 

West Agricultural Residential  Single family dwellings and farm land 

 

 

II.  NATURE OF REQUEST AND GENERAL FACTS 
Maria and Pedro Rivera submitted an application to the City of Umatilla Planning Department 

requesting approval of a partition application to create three parcels for residential development. 

The subject property is identified as Tax Lot ID #5N28210001300 (Account #133096) or Tax 

Lot 1300 on Assessors Map 5N2821. The subject property is 20.98 acres and the partition 

request would result in three parcels. Parcel 1 would be 5 acres, Parcel 2 would be 5 acres, and 

Parcel 3 would be 11.05 acres. The partition request would not create a new public street. 23



Nobles, Appeal (AP-1-20)  Page 2 of 6 

Clyde C Nobles, Betty Nobles, James B. Nobles and Sandra Nobles submitted an appeal on 

February 10, 2020, to the City of Umatilla Planning Department, appealing the Planning 

Department’s administrative decision to the Umatilla Planning Commission. The deadline to file 

an appeal of the administrative decision for MnP-3-19 was 5:00 p.m. on February 10, 2020. The 

Appeal was timely filed. The City of Umatilla Zoning Ordinance (CUZO) 10-14-14(D) convey 

standing to appeal a Type II administrative decision only to the applicant, and those persons who 

submitted written comments within the 14-day public comment period. All appellants listed 

submitted written comment during the public comment period and have standing to appeal. 

CUZO 10-14-14(F) requires appeal hearing conducted by the Planning Commission to be de 

novo but issues under consideration shall be limited to those listed in the notice of appeal. 

 

The applicant filed appeal did not directly cite an applicable standard but asserts an assignment 

of error in making the administrative decision: 1) that the Rivera Partition (MnP-3-19) does not 

have the 60-foot access easement required for division of the property.   

 

III. ANALYSIS 
The criteria applicable to this request are shown in underlined text and the responses are shown in 

standard text. All of the following criteria must be satisfied in order for this request to be approved. 

 

A. The Rivera Partition (MnP-3-19) does not have the 60-foot access easement required for 

division of the property. 

 

Finding: Prior to January 3, 2017, land use applications for property within the Urban 

Growth Area (UGA), the unincorporated area outside of City Limits but within the Urban 

Growth Boundary (UGB), were processed by Umatilla County. When the Joint 

Management Agreement (JMA) was updated in January 2017 the City assumed 

responsibility for processing applications within the UGA. Per the JMA the City would 

process all land development application including land division applications in 

accordance with the City’s adopted Type II and III review. 

 

The City has adopted and applies the 1972 Umatilla County Zoning Ordinance (UCZO) to 

properties located within the UGA. However, the UCZO does not provide provision for 

land division type application such as a partition request. Historically the County applied 

the land division provisions of the Umatilla County Development Code (UCDC) to land 

division type application. The UCDC provided specific standards for land division type 

applications. Per Section 152.646(B) minor and major partitions on land not zoned 

Exclusive Farm Use (EFU) or Grazing/Farming Use (GF) (see below) are considered a 

Type II Land Division. The adopted zoning map shows the property as Agricultural 

Residential (R-1) and would be subject to the Type II land division standards in UCDC 

Sections 152.680 through 152.686. As it relates to the is appeal UCDC Subsection 

152.684(F)(3) establishes standards for a land division providing access to 4 or more 

properties. 

 

UCDC 152.646 

(B) Type II Land Division 

(1) The following proposals are designated Type II Land Divisions:  

(a) Major partitions, except in the EFU or GF Zones.  

(b) Minor partitions, except in the EFU or GF Zones.  
24



Nobles, Appeal (AP-1-20)  Page 3 of 6 

(c) Replats of partitions, where the original partition was a recorded partition 

plat, except in the EFU or GF Zones. 

(2) Review and approval procedures for Type II Land Divisions are set forth in §§ 

152.680 through 152.686 of this chapter. 

 

UCDC 152.684(F)(3):  

A recorded easement providing access to four or more parcels, or that potentially will 

serve additional parcels or lots, or will be an extension of a future road as specified in a 

future road plan, shall be required to meet the Option 2 or “P-2” County Road Standard 

as provided in § 152.648 (D). The access easement or right-of-way width shall be a 

minimum of 60-feet wide and improved with a road surface width of at least 22-feet 

wide, constructed with 8 inches of nominal compacted gravel thickness, and with gravel 

size and grading conforming to ODOT specifications. All 60 foot rights-of-way and/or 

access easement roads may be required to be named prior to final approval of the 

partition plat and if required to be named, the road name must be included on the final 

partition plat map. Named roads must be posted with a road name sign, provided and 

installed by the County Public Works Department, and paid for by the applicant prior to 

the final partition plat approval. 

 

It is believed that the appellants appeal is based on the County’s standard to require a 60-foot 

right of way and/or access easement that provide access to or potentially could provide access to 

four or more parcels. However, the City has not adopted the UCDC and cannot apply standards 

that have not been adopted by the City. The City follows a similar process for land division type 

applicants and applies the underlaying zone standards in addition to specific land division 

standards adopted by the City. For the Rivera Partition the standards from the UCZO applicable 

to the request were identified as Section 3.073 dimensional standards (see below) 

 

Section 3.073 DIMENSIONAL STANDARDS In an R-1 Zone, the following 

dimensional standards shall apply:  

(1) Minimum Lot Area for Residential Use: 4 acres; 

(2) Minimum Lot Area for Nonresidential Use: As determined by the Department of 

Environmental Quality to be necessary for the protection of public health; 

(3) Setback: No building shall be located closer than 20 ft. from a lot line. 

 

In addition, the City applies the adopted land division standards as identified in Umatilla Land 

Division Ordinance (LDO), specifically Section 11-2-6 (see attached Finding and Decision MnP-

3-19). While the City’s standards for streets, sidewalks, curbs, water and sewer lines, other 

utilities, and safety standards for installation of such improvements are not applicable to 

applications in the UGA. The City has enforced dedication of access and/or utility easement that 

could meet a City standard for future development. A typical local residential street is expected 

to have a 60-foot right of way although reduced right of way widths may be allowed (LDO 

Section 11-4-2 C, see below). Staff has accepted access easements as sufficient to meet the 

requirements for dedication of right of way within the UGA. 

 

C. Right Of Way And Roadway Widths: Generally, right of way and roadway widths for 

state highways and county roads shall be determined by these entities. Unless otherwise 

determined by the city administrator based on the recommendation of the city engineer 

and public works director, the widths of streets and roadways shall meet the following 
25



Nobles, Appeal (AP-1-20)  Page 4 of 6 

standards and, in addition, all street construction shall conform to the public works 

standards: 

MINIMUM STREET STANDARDS    

 

 

Type Of Street1 

 

Minimum Right 

Of Way 

Minimum 

Widths For 

Sidewalks2 

Minimum 

Pavement 

Width 

 

Bicycle 

Lane 

Major arterial street State or county 

standards or 60' 

6' both sides 40' 6' both sides 

Minor arterial street State or county 

standards or 60' 

5' both sides 40' 6' both sides 

Collector street 60' or county 

standard 

5' both sides 40' 5' both sides 

Neighborhood collector 

street 

60' or county 

standard 

5' both sides 40' 5' both sides 

Local streets: commercial 

or industrial 

60' minimum 5' both sides 36' n/a 

Cul-de-sacs: commercial or 

industrial 

55' radius 5' around 45' radius n/a 

Local streets: residential2,3 34' 5' both sides 24' n/a 

Cul-de-sacs: residential 50' radius 5' around 40' radius    n/a 

Pedestrian connections 20' minimum 6' walkway n/a 6' wide in 

addition to 

walkway 

Alleys 24' commercial 

or industrial; 20' 

residential 

n/a 20' minimum    n/a 

1.Standards for streets within the downtown plan area shall conform to design standards of the 

"Downtown Revitalization And Circulation Study, June 29, 2001", figures 5-9 and 5-13, or other 

applicable street standards of the downtown plan. 

2.The typical local residential street is expected to have a 60 foot right of way with 36 feet of 

pavement. Local residential streets may have reduced rights of way and pavement widths when 

anticipated traffic volume is less than 500 vehicle trips per day for low density developments in the 

R-1 and R-2 zones. 

3.A local residential "minor street" may be approved with a minimum right of way of 34 feet and 

pavement width of 24 feet when the proposed street serves 5 or fewer dwellings; is not a through 

street and does not exceed 150 feet in length. A minor street may be terminated with a hammerhead 

type turnaround. A minor street may be public or privately owned. If private, "right of way" shall 
26



Nobles, Appeal (AP-1-20)  Page 5 of 6 

become required easement width and provisions for maintenance shall be recorded with the deeds of 

properties served by the street. 

 

The County Tax Lot map shows an existing 60-foot easement labeled as Cooney Ln Ext (Private 

Ln) extending from Bensel Road, a two-lane paved County road, north to the subject property. In 

addition, there is an existing private lane identified as Copper Ln that extends from the 

intersection of Cooney Ln Ext, at the south east corner of the subject property, to the west along 

the subject property and provides access to additional properties located to the west of the 

subject property. 

 

The property owners recorded deed list access as provided by “A non-exclusive easement for 

road purposes and incidental purposes contained under deeds recorded in Microfilm R-179, page 

1441 and Microfilm R-179, page 1445, office of Umatilla County Records and an Easement for 

ingress and egress and utilities contained under deed recorded in Microfilm R-70, Page 548, 

Office of Umatilla County Records”. The recorded deeds created a 40-foot access easement to 

the subject property and two 30-foot easements along the northern and eastern property lines of 

Tax Lot 1900 located directly south of the subject property. The 40-foot access easement is 

shown on Partition Plat 1999-12. The 40-foot easement is then expanded in 2001 to a “50-foot 

access easement” by Partition Plat 2001-15. Partition Plat 2004-08 expands the access easement 

to 60 foot. Although many of the dedications for Partition Plan 2004-08 are exclusive to parcels 

within the plat expansion, the expansion of the 50-foot easement to 60 foot does not include the 

exclusive benefit language. Information submitted by the appellant indicated that the 60-foot 

easement is exclusive and does not benefit the subject property. Regardless of the applicants 

right to the additional 10-foot the applicant recorded deed show the uses of a non-exclusive 40-

foot access easement and the access easement is expanded to 50-foot by Partition Plat 2001-15 

and contains not exclusive use language. 

 

Conclusion: Based on the information provided in the record the subject property has access via 

a 40-foot easement created when the property was sold and the deed was recorded in 1989 (179-

1441 & 179-1445) and 30-foot easement created across the north and east property lines of Tax 

Lot 1900 (70-548). As addressed in the report the City cannot enforce standards from the UCDC 

as it has not been adopted by the City. The City standards are designed to allow for additional 

flexibility and “expected to have a 60-foot right of way” but allows for a local residential street 

to have reduced rights of way/access easements. While the City prefers a 60-foot right of way a 

50-foot right of way can accommodate a typically City street and a local street may be reduced to 

a minimum 40-foot right of way (See Figure 10.2-10 from the City of Umatilla’s Transportation 

System Plan (TSP)). Therefore, the applicant has submitted evidence into the record that show 

the existing access easement dedicated to the subject property are sufficient to meet the City’s 

adopted minimum standards in the LDO and TSP. In addition, an existing 60-foot access 

easement has been created that would reserve a future right of way to the expected 60-foot City 

standard if/when future development occurs. 

 

IV.  SUMMARY AND RECOMMENDATION 
 

The appellants, Clyde C Nobles, Betty Nobles, James B Nobles and Sandra Nobles, are requesting 

an appeal of a Planning Department decision to approve a partition request (Rivera Partition MnP- 27



Nobles, Appeal (AP-1-20)  Page 6 of 6 

3-19). Therefore, based on the information in Sections I and II of this report, and the above criteria, 

findings of fact and conclusions addressed in Section III, staff recommends planning commission 

DENY this appeal request, AP-1-20, and AFFIRM the Planning Department’s decision to 

approval the Rivera Partition (MnP-3-19) that would approve a land division request to partition 

the subject property into three parcels; Parcel 1 would be 5 acres, Parcel 2 would be 5 acres, and 

Parcel 3 would be 11.05 acres. 

 

V.  EXHIBITS 
 

Exhibit A – Public Notice Map 

Exhibit B – Finding and Decision for Partition MnP-3-19 

Exhibit C – Rivera Partition MnP-3-19 Appeal 

Exhibit D – County Tax Lot Map 5N2821 

Exhibit E – Warranty Deed to Pedro and Maria Rivera (488-0381) 

Exhibit F – Warranty Deed to C. J. and Ruth M. Nobles (179-1441) 

Exhibit G – Warranty Deed to C. J. and Ruth M. Nobles (179-1444) 

Exhibit H – Warranty Deed to Stuart F and Vickie P Bonney (070-0548) 

Exhibit I – Partition Plat 1999-12 

Exhibit J – Partition Plat 2001-15 

Exhibit K – Partition Plat 2004-08 

Exhibit L – Figure 12.2-10, City of Umatilla Transportation System Plan 

 

28



00200200A1

01700700A1

02100

01300

01900

01000

01500

01800

01401

0160001601

02001

01201

01200 01203

01202

02002
02003

01403 01400

0200001100

UMATILLA RIVER

COPPER

CO
ON

EY
 LA

NE

5N2821

NOBLES APPEAL(AP-1-20) OF RIVERA PARTITION (MnP-3-19)
MAP DISCLAIMER: No warranty is made as to the

accuracy, reliability or completeness of this data.
Map should be used for reference purposes only.

Not survey grade or for legal use.
Created by Jacob Foutz, on 3/2/2020

Legend
Subject Property Tax Lots 9/1/19 City Limits

0 200 400 600
Feet

.

OWNER Tax Lot 
   WALTON JOSHUA C & JAMIE L 1202
   PARKINS VAUGHN EDWARD & TAMARA ROSE 1203
   RIVERA PEDRO & MARIA 1300
   NOBLES SAM K & NANCY C 1401
   NOBLES CLYDE C & BETTY L 1500
   KNOEPFLER JASON S & NOBLES-FISHER NICOLE 1601
   WOOD TRAVIS J & BRITNEY M 1900
   LYMAN KATHERINE H 2100
   VADATA INC 200

EXHIBIT A 29



CITY OF UMATILLA PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

 REPORT AND DECISION 

FOR 

PARTITION MnP-3-19 

 

DATE OF DECISION: January 31, 2020 

 

REPORT PREPARED BY: Jacob Foutz, Associate Planner 

                           

 

I.  GENERAL INFORMATION 

 
Applicant: Maria and Pedro Rivera, 7422 Cleon Ave, Sun Valley, CA 91352 

 
Property Owners: Maria and Pedro Rivera, 7422 Cleon Ave, Sun Valley, CA 91352 

 

Land Use Review: Preliminary partition review. 

 

Property Description: Township 5N, Range 28, Section 21, Tax Lot 1300. 

 

Location: The property is located at 30083 Copper Ln, Hermiston, OR 97882.  

 

Existing Development: The property is developed with a manufactured home. 

 

Proposed Development: To partition the property into three parcels for residential use. 

 

Zone Agricultural Residential (R-1) 

 

Adjacent Land Use(s):   

Adjacent Property Zoning Use 

North Light Industrial Data center campus 

South  Agricultural Residential Single-family dwellings and farm land 

East Agricultural Residential  Single-family dwellings and farm land 

West Agricultural Residential  Single family dwellings and farm land 

 

II.  NATURE OF REQUEST 
 

The applicant, Maria and Pedro Rivera, request approval of a land division to partition the property 

into three parcels. Parcel 1 would be 5 acres, Parcel 2 would be 5 acres, and Parcel 3 would be 

11.05 acres. The partition request would not create a new public street. 

 

The subject property is located within the City’s Urban Growth Area (UGA) or the unincorporated 

area outside of City Limits but within the City’s Urban Growth Boundary (UGB), a line that 

delineates the outer extent of the UGA. The City’s Comprehensive Plan is in effect for the UGA, 

however, the 1972 Umatilla County Zoning Ordinance (UCZO) is in effect for the UGA. 

Applications within the UGA are processed by the City in accordance with the City’s review 

procedures contained within the City of Umatilla Zoning Ordinance (CUZO). Land division 

EXHIBIT B 

30



 

Rivera Partition (MnP-3-19)  Page 2 of 7 

request within the UGA are reviewed for compliance with the applicable standards as contained 

within the UCZO and are subject to the City’s Land Division Ordinance (LDO).  

 

III. ANALYSIS 
The criteria applicable to this request are shown in underlined text and the responses are shown in 

standard text. All of the following criteria must be satisfied in order for this request to be approved. 

 

1972 UMATILLA COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE 

 

Section 3.078 DIMENSIONAL STANDARDS  

In an R-1A Zone the following dimensional standards shall apply: 

(1) Minimum Lot Area for Residential Use: 2 acres; 

(2) Minimum Lot Area for Nonresidential Use: As determined by the Department of 

Environmental Quality to be necessary for the protection of public health; 

Findings: The applicant is proposing to create three parcels in the county agricultural 

residential zone. All of the proposed parcels would be five (5) acres or larger and comply 

with the minimum lot area for residential use. 

 

Conclusion: All of the proposed parcels are a minimum of five (5) acres, exceeding the 

minimum lot area of two (2) acres.   

 

(3) Setback: No building shall be located closer than 20 ft. from the lot line. 

Findings: As show on the applicants site plan the existing building meet the setback 

requirements.  

 

Conclusion: The existing building located on the property comply with setback 

requirements.  

 

CITY OF UMATILLA LAND DIVISION ORDINANCE 

 

SECTION 11-2-6: LAND DIVISION APPROVAL CRITERIA: 

No plat for a subdivision or partition may be considered for approval until the city has approved a 

tentative plan. Approval of the tentative plan shall be binding upon the city and the applicant for 

the purposes of preparing the subdivision or partition plat. In each case, the applicant bears the 

burden of proof to demonstrate that the proposal satisfies applicable criteria and standards. 

 

A. Approval Criteria: Land division tentative plans shall only be approved if found to comply 

with the following criteria: 

 

1. The proposal shall comply with the city's comprehensive plan. 

Findings: The City of Umatilla’s Zoning Ordinance (CUZO), Land Division Ordinance 

(LDO) and Umatilla County Zoning Ordinance (UCZO) implement the comprehensive 

plan goals and polices. If a request is found to meet or be capable of meeting the applicable 

standards and criteria in the CUZO, UCZO and LDO the request is considered to be 

consistent with the comprehensive plan. 

 

Conclusion: This request is found to meet or be capable of meeting all of the applicable 31



 

Rivera Partition (MnP-3-19)  Page 3 of 7 

standards and criterion in the CUZO, UCZO and LDO as addressed in this report.  

 

2. The proposal shall comply with the I-82/U.S. 730 interchange area management plan 

(IAMP) and the access management plan in the IAMP (section 7) as applicable. 

Findings: The Interchange Area Management Plan (IAMP) extends along U.S. Highway 

730 from its intersection with U.S. Highway 395 west to Eisele Drive just west of the U.S. 

Post Office within City Limits. The property is not within the IAMP area. 

 

Conclusion: The property is not located within the I-82/U.S. 730 IAMP. This criterion is 

not applicable. 

 

3. The proposal shall comply with the city's zoning requirements. 

Findings: The property is zoned R-1 and the applicable zoning requirements within the 

UGA are established in UCZO Section 3.078 addressed above. This request complies with 

all of the dimensional standards as addressed above.  

 

Conclusion: The request is for approval of a partition that would result in three parcels. 

Therefore, the request is subject to the minimum dimensional standards as required by 

Section 3.078 of the UCZO. All of the proposed parcels will meet the minimum 

dimensional standards as addressed above. 

 

4. The proposal shall comply with the city's public works standards. 

Findings: The City’s public works standards are engineering design standards for 

construction of streets, sidewalks, curbs, water and sewer lines, other utilities, and safety 

standards for installation of such improvements. The property is located within the City’s 

UGA. Each of the proposed parcels will have sewage disposal provided through an on-site 

sewage disposal system that already exists or obtain the appropriate approval from 

Umatilla County Environmental Health. Water is assumed to be provide by a well on each 

parcel. 

 

Conclusion: The proposed parcels are assumed to be served by onsite septic and well. 

Therefore, the City’s public work standards do not apply. Notice will be sent to Umatilla 

County Environmental Health, Oregon Department of Environmental Quality and Oregon 

Water Resources Department. Those agencies have jurisdiction over an onsite sewage 

disposal system and well. 

 

5. The proposal shall comply with applicable state and federal regulations, including, but not 

limited to, Oregon Revised Statutes 92, 197, 227, and wetland regulations. 

Findings: The CUZO, UCZO and LDO implement the applicable provision of ORS 92, 

197, 227. The subject property does not contain wetlands as shown on the National 

Wetlands Inventory (NWI) or figure 5-1.2 in the City’s Comprehensive Plan. If found to 

be in compliance with all other provisions outlined in this report, the request is considered 

to comply with the applicable state and federal regulations. 

 

Conclusion:  This request is found to meet or be capable of meeting all of the applicable 

standards and criterion in the CUZO, UCZO and LDO as addressed in this report. 

 
32



 

Rivera Partition (MnP-3-19)  Page 4 of 7 

6. The proposal shall conserve inventoried natural resource areas and floodplains, including, 

but not limited to, mapped rivers, creeks, sloughs, and wetlands. 

Findings: There are no known wetlands, as identified on the NWI, or flood zones on the 

subject property. The City of Umatilla’s Comprehensive Plan does not identify any 

significant natural resources on the property and there are no known rivers, creeks or 

sloughs on the property. 

 

Conclusion: There are no inventoried natural resource areas, waterways, water bodies or 

floodplain areas to conserve on the property.  

 

7. The proposal shall minimize disruption of natural features of the site, including steep slopes 

or other features, while providing for safe and efficient vehicle, pedestrian, and bicycle 

access. 

Findings: The property is currently utilized as a single-family dwelling and pasture land. 

The subject property is not identified as having slope (steep slopes) in Figure 7.1-2 of the 

City of Umatilla’s Comprehensive Plan. Access is currently provided via Copper Lane. All 

three of the proposed lots will be served by Copper Lane.  

 

Conclusion: The subject property does not have inventoried natural features as identified 

in the City’s Comprehensive Plan. Therefore, no disruption of natural features will occur 

as a result of this partition request. Requiring public access for vehicles, pedestrians or 

bicycles at this time is not warranted. 

 

8. The proposal shall provide adjacent lands with access to public facilities and streets to 

allow its full development as allowed by the City's codes and requirements. 

Findings: The subject property is currently a large rectangular area used as a residence and 

pasture land. Access is provided via Copper lane; the proposed lots will also be served by 

Copper lane along their southern borders.  

 

The subject property is located within the Hermiston Irrigation District. Therefore, the 

applicant shall be required to provide irrigation facilities and easements necessary to ensure 

delivery of irrigation water to the proposed parcels. A condition of approval will ensure 

compliance with this standard. 

 

Conclusion: The adjacent lands will have access to public facilities and streets consistent 

with City standards. However, a condition of approval shall be imposed requiring the 

applicant to provide irrigation facilities and easements necessary to ensure delivery of 

irrigation water to the proposed parcels. 

 

9. The proposal shall be designed with streets that continue or connect to existing and 

planned land division plats on adjoining properties. All proposed streets shall comply 

with standards of this Title and the Public Works Standards.  

Findings: No streets are proposed as part of the proposed partition. 

 

Conclusion: No streets are proposed as part of partition. This criterion is not applicable. 

 

 
33



 

Rivera Partition (MnP-3-19)  Page 5 of 7 

IV.  PUBLIC COMMENT, SUMMARY AND DECISION 

Comments were received from Umatilla County Public Health, Hermiston Irrigation District, 

Clyde & Betty Nobles, Jason Knopfler & Nicole Nobles-Fisher, and James & Sandra Nobles. 

Umatilla County Public Health requested verification that the existing septic system would not be 

bisected by the new property lines and that a site evaluation would need to be conducted if future 

development includes an on-site septic system. A condition of approval will be imposed to verify 

the location of the septic system in relation to the new property lines. Hermiston Irrigation District 

imposed a number of conditions from the district that will need to be satisfied prior to the district 

signing off on the final plat. A condition of approval requiring the application to work with the 

district will be imposed. 

 

The comments from Clyde & Betty Nobles, Jason Knopfler & Nicole Nobles-Fisher, and James 

& Sandra Nobles were received as a letter with pictures (Exhibit C), copied, submitted three times, 

and signed by the individual property owners. The letter raises the questions of road 

availability/access to and from the proposed partition, who is responsible for the maintenance and 

the claim that previous applications have been denied by the county because of this road/access. 

The road/access in question is found on assessor’s map 5N2821 labeled as COONEY LN EXT 

(PRIVATE LANE).  

 

Legal access through Cooney ln ext. to the applicant’s property can be found referenced on Pedro 

and Maria Rivera’s deed for the subject property. This legal access allows the owner and 

subsequent owners of the subject property or portions thereof to use Cooney ln ext.  

 

As stated on the property owners deed: 

“A non-exclusive easement for road purposes and incidental purposes contained under deeds 

recorded in Microfilm R-179, page 1441 and Microfilm R-179, page 1445, office of Umatilla 

County Records and an Easement for ingress and egress and utilities contained under deed 

recorded in Microfilm R-70, Page 548, Office of Umatilla County Records.” 

 

Easements for access (ingress and egress) and utilities are private agreements between parties. 

Based on the documents submitted the applicant has access to the property via existing easements. 

Access is provided by a 60-foot-wide easement from Bensel Road to the subject property. Private 

easements do not fall under the jurisdiction of the City or County and are the responsibility of the 

property owners and benefiting properties to maintain.  

 

City staff spoke with County Planning staff about the area and the history of permits. Although 

there is a permit that expired due to a road not being improved to a County standard the application 

was not denied. When the County managed land use application with the UGA the County required 

access easement to be brough up to an applicable County road standard. The City assumed 

jurisdiction over land use application within UGA in January of 2017 and the City does not have 

standards adopted that require a private easement to be improved to a certain road standard.  

 

Therefore, the City finds that evidence has been submitted that shows the applicant has access via 

existing easements and the City does not require private access easement to be improved to city 

standard. In addition, a review a permit history shows that similar applications were approved by 

the County utilizing the same access easements for properties to the west. 34



 

Rivera Partition (MnP-3-19)  Page 6 of 7 

 

There is no record of denied applications in the area due to the current access past cooper lane. In 

reaching out to the county planning department staff were informed of an application past cooper 

lane that was not brought up to the correct county standard and was denied due to a lapse in time, 

but not because of access issues. The City and County have different approval criteria for a 

partition, and the City has no requirement for meeting a certain road classification for approval of 

a partition.   

 

This request for tentative partition approval of property in the Agricultural Residential Zone meets, 

or is capable of meeting through appropriate conditions of approval, all of the applicable 

development standards for the Agricultural Residential Zone, and the land division requirements 

of the City of Umatilla. Therefore, based on the information in Sections I and II of this report, and 

the above criteria and standards, findings of fact and conclusions contained in Section III, this 

request, MnP-3-19, for tentative partition plat approval to create two 5-acre parcels and one 11.05-

acre parcel from an existing 21.05-acre parcel in the Agricultural Residential Zone identified as 

Tax Lot 1300 on Assessors Map 5N2821 is APPROVED, subject to the conditions of approval 

contained in Section V of this report. 

 

V.  CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
 

1. The final plat must be approved and recorded within one year from the date of this approval.  

The final plat must comply with the requirements of ORS chapter 92, and the requirements 

under Sections 11-3-1 and 11-3-2 of the City of Umatilla Land Division Ordinance. 

 

2. The applicant/developer shall submit a copy of the final recorded plat to the City of Umatilla 

Planning Department. 

 

3. The applicant shall work with the Hermiston Irrigation District to provide irrigation facilities 

and easements necessary to ensure delivery of irrigation water. Compliance with this 

requirement shall be signified by the District signing the final plat. 

 

4. If any historic, cultural or other archaeological artifacts, or human remains are discovered 

during construction the applicant shall immediately cease construction activity, secure the 

site, and notify appropriate agencies including but not limited to the City of Umatilla, and 

the Confederated Tribes of the Umatilla Indian Reservation (CTUIR) Cultural Resources 

Protection Program. 

5. The applicant shall provide verification on the location of the existing on-site septic system 

in relation to the property lines prior to final plat approval. 

 

 

VI.  EXHIBITS 

Exhibit A Notice Map 

Exhibit B Preliminary Partition Plat for MnP-3-19 (Reduced) 

Exhibit C Public Comment (letter and pictures) 

 

CC 35



 

Rivera Partition (MnP-3-19)  Page 7 of 7 

 

Hermiston Irrigation District  

Umatilla County Health  

Clyde & Betty Nobles 

Jason Knopfler & Nicole Nobles-Fisher 

James Nobles & Sandra Nobles 

36



EXHIBIT C

37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



UMATILLA COUNTY
SCALE:  1" = 400'

 SEC 21 T 5N R 28E WMThis map was prepared for Assessment & Taxation
purposes only and was NOT prepared nor is it suitable
for legal, engineering or surveying purposes.

200

400

500

600
300

900

1400

1900

1700

1800 1700A1

1300

1601

1500

2100

1000

1100

100

700

800

1200

2000

1401 1402

2001 2002

1403

2003

1404

1201 1202

1600

1203

200A1

201

57.12 Ac

0.59 Ac

0.35 Ac

5.45 Ac
79.68 Ac

6.07 Ac

0.45 Ac

2.46 Ac

26.41 Ac

4.00 Ac

61.43 Ac

8.00 Ac

25.89 Ac

19.02 Ac

20.98 Ac

26.11 Ac

4.93 Ac

Ac.

0.75 Ac

4.18 Ac

4.19 Ac12.00 Ac

4.49 Ac8.98 Ac

4.00 Ac

4.04 Ac

4.00 Ac4.79 Ac

4.76 Ac 4.76 Ac

18.77 Ac

4.75 Ac

9.10 Ac.

178.20 Ac

2004-07

20
06

-0
1

2009 - 06

2000-17

19
99

-1
2

2004 - 07

2004-08

2006-06

2001 - 1
5

2001-49

2014-13

2009-21

2009-16

20
18

-0
3

Ctr. Sec.

2221

28 27

1516

2221

21

28

20

29

SEC. COR.
   

   
   

   
   

   
 R

IV
E

R

U
M

AT
IL

LA
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

(N
O

  6
23

)
N

O
  1

28
1

C
O

  R
D

(BENSEL RD.)
CO. RD.

CO. RD.
(NO. 620)

N
O

. 1
27

5

(N
O

. 8
48

)

(R
iv

er
 R

d.
)

N
O

. 1
27

5

C
O

. R
D

.

C
O

O
N

EY
 L

N

LI
N

D
   

   
   

  R
D

NO. 1296

U
M

AT
IL

LA
  R

IV
ER

  R
D

BO
N

N
EY

LN

C
O

O
N

E
Y

 L
N

 E
X

T 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 (P

R
IV

A
TE

 L
N

)

C
O

O
N

E
Y

 L
N

 E
X

T 
 (P

R
IV

A
TE

 L
N

)

COPPER LN (PRIVATE LN) (R553-524)

P.T. 326+37.7

125+80.5

R
.R

.3° C
.R

.

S
T. 183.92'

66'

66
'

30'
30'

PARCEL 3

PARCEL 2

PARCEL 2

PARCEL 2PARCEL 2

PARCEL 1

PARCEL 1

PARCEL 1 PARCEL 2

PARCEL 2

PARCEL 1

PARCEL 1

PARCEL 2

PARCEL 1

PARCEL 1PARCEL 2

PARCEL 2

PARCEL 1

PARCEL 1

PARCEL 2

PARCEL 1

See Map 5N 28B

S
E

E
 M

A
P

  5
N

28
20

S
EE

 M
AP

  5
N

28
22

SEE MAP  5N2828B SEE MAP  5N2828A

20
' E

as
em

en
t

3 0
'  E

as
e m

e n
t

66
'

B.P.A.   EASEMENT

40
' E

as
em

en
t

EASEMENT

Ea
se

m
en

t

60' ACCESS EASEMENT

30' EASEMENT

30
' E

A
S E

M
EN

T

EASEMENT

60' EASEMENT

60' EASEMENT

60' EASEMENT

60
' E

A
SE

M
EN

T

60' EASEMENT

60
' E

A
SE

M
EN

T

0604

0604

0601

690.29'

55
1 .

89
'

563.32'

411.65'

661.55'

22
5.

50
'

20
7.

15
'

262.58'

1669.49'

S 37° 21' 50" E

S 
16

° 3
1'

 W

16
7 5

.5
0'

N
 0

° 
13

' 2
6"

 W

40'

973.54'

N88° 38' 32" W
662.91'

13
1 9

.7
2'

N
 0

° 
22

' 5
3"

 W

112.50'

26
1.6

9'

1567.30'

N
 2

8'
 W

 1
3 1

8.
9 5

'

S89°45'50"W

43
8.

96
'

1 3
0 1

. 7
5 '

2652.27'

12
96

. 5
0 '

7 9
6'

4 3
9.

69
'

43
9.

0 0
'

46
9.

0 0
'

80.80 ch.

16
73

.1
8 '

50
'

1041'
R =

 13
65

'

-1
67

2 1
8 '

-

S 79^ 37' W

115'

12
0.

6'

123.6'

115'

S89°57'18"W     390.68'

S89°51'18"W  347.73'

N
00

°2
4'

29
"W

   
76

5.
44

'

48
9.

56
'

35
7.

36
'

R
=2

81
4.

79
'

N
0°

23
'0

2"
W

   
96

6.
32

'

N
0°

23
'0

2"
W

   
66

6.
32

'

N
0°

23
'0

2"
W

  3
00

.0
0'

S89°57'43"E    641.68'

S89.5743E    450.05' S89°57'43"E    1205.68'

S89°57'43"E   

S89°57'43"E    564.00'

41
'

9.20'

60
'

S89°50'01"W     1084.41'    

N
0°

23
'0

7'
W

   
46

9.
00

' 

N
0°

23
'0

7"
W

   
46

9.
00

' 

N89°50'01"E
1084.41'

390.31'

388.88'

46
9.

00
'

340' 1091.73'

340'

340'

450.05'

641.68'

56
8.

32
'

S89°50'01"W    371.50'
S89°50'01"W

   371.50'

  4
69

.0
0'

39
8.

04
'

30
0'

98
.0

4'

10'

85.18'

46
3.

41
'

47
0.

56
'

S 89° 50' 01" W 462.90'280.00'

171.00'571.90

41
3.5

0'

17
5.

00
'

459.62'

476.93'

450.16'

450.16'456.97'

46
0.

60
'

46
0.

60
'

44
7.

14
'

S89°50'47"E

S89°50'47"E

S89°48'45"E

R=50'

N89°46'48"E 1860.71'

1862.03'
792.76'

792.76'

43
9.

47
'

N
0°

24
'2

6"
W

4 3
8.

96
'

S 89° 45' 51" W 2090.82'

S
 0

° 
23

' 0
1"

 E
12

96
.5

0'

S
 0

° 
3 3

'  2
6 "

 E

2094.91'

32
8.

77
'

477.27'

S89°50'47"E

S0
3°

53
'5

4"
E 

  4
45

.3
9'

N88°45'00"W     1313.70

N40
°0

8'0
8"

E    
 

S73°53'47"E     

S1
2°

11
'3

0"
W

   
  

S2
2°

51
'3

2"
W

   
  

S89°33'54"W     
31'

S
1°

30
'4

2"
W

N
18°48'06"W

N89°33'54"E

N88° 38' 32" W

N
01°08'25"W

       21. 46. 39'

S88°58'34"W      1679.83' N
01°25'04 "W

   5 00 .00 'N
01

°0
8'

25
"W

   
 5

00
.0

0'

N
01

°1
4'

46
"W

   
 9

00
.8

9'
N

0°
00

'0
0"

E
  1

60
5.

00
' S

0°
00

'0
0"

W
  4

84
.4

1'
S

0°
00

'0
0"

W
  5

03
.6

4'
S1

1°
01

'4
5"

W
   

   
78

.4
1'

N89°59'52"E
     380.00'

N90°00'00"W
     365.00'

N88°58'34"E     968.41'

N88°54'345E     973.22'
N88°38'32"E    1562.15'

N88°58'29"E    1649.25'

Revised: 05-14-18

5N 28 21

5N 28 21

EXHIBIT D

49



EXHIBIT E

50



51



52



53



EXHIBIT F

54



55



56



EXHIBIT G

57



58



59



EXHIBIT H

60



61



EXHIBIT I

62



EXHIBIT J

63



EXHIBIT K

64



EXHIBIT L

65


	Planning Commission Agenda
	2020-214- - 02-25-20 Draft.docx
	2020-215- - SUB-1-20 Vandelay Meadows Report & Recommendation.docx
	2020-216- - AP-1-20 PC Report (w Exhibits).pdf

